
 

 

 

 
 

Strengthening Social Connection in Communities Grants 

Frequently Asked Questions 

Last Updated: 08/2025 

 

Eligibility 

 

Are Villages eligible entities? Check the eligible entities list in the Request for Proposals 

(RFP). Some Villages are nonprofit organizations and would be eligible under the 

“Community-based social service organizations working with older adults” category. 

 

Are PACE sites eligible entities? Check the eligible entities list in the RFP. Some PACE 

sites are nonprofit organizations and would be eligible under the “Community-based social 

service organizations working with older adults” category. 

 
Are for-profit agencies eligible? For-profit entities are not eligible to be the prime 

applicant for this opportunity, although they may serve as partners to eligible applicants. 

 

We are a grantee of a AAA and/or ADRC and have programs for older adults. Are 

we eligible? Yes. 

 

Would a Deaf and Hard of Hearing nonprofit organization that is expanding 

services to support older adults who are Deaf and Hard of Hearing qualify for this 

grant opportunity?  Yes, you would be eligible under the “Community-based social 

service organizations working with older adults” category. 

 

I am a nonprofit that serves older adults located in a single PSA state. Am I 
eligible to apply? Yes, you are eligible. The RFP discusses that briefly in the Letter of 

Community/Support section. 

 

Can a nonprofit medical center be able to apply? Unfortunately, no, however you may 

be a partner on the project! 

 

Would a nonprofit located outside the US be eligible to apply? No, only those in the 

U.S./U.S. territories are eligible to apply. 

 

Two grantees must be in western New York, specifically in one of the following 

counties. Where can the remaining 8 grantees be located? The other grantees may 
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be from anywhere in the U.S. The Health Foundation for Western & Central New York is 

funding the two grants specifically in western New York (Allegany, Cattaraugus, 

Chautauqua, Erie, Genesee, Niagara, Orleans or Wyoming counties). 

 

Would a university/college be eligible to apply? A university/college may be eligible 

in the “other” category if you sufficiently describe your organization's connection to the 

Aging Network, such as your relationship to/partnerships with your AAA, ADRC, State Unit 

on Aging, etc. Universities/colleges may also serve as partners to eligible Aging Network 

organizations on a proposal.  

 

 

 
Aging Network  

 

Where can I find my local Area Agency on Aging? Visit the Eldercare Locator at 

https://eldercare.acl.gov/home. You can search by zip code. 

 

Could you clarify what you mean by "the Aging Network? We provide this link in the 

RFP: https://acl.gov/programs/aging-and-disability-networks. 

 

 

Eligible Programs/ Program Bank 

 

Are the programs listed in the Social Program Bank the only programs recognized 
or may we propose other similar evidence-supported programs?  Only the approved 

programs listed in the program bank may be proposed for replication or expansion though 

either track. The exceptions to this are technology applications, devices or platforms for 

which applicants may propose different evidence-based/evidence-informed options, or 

under Track 2, the implementation of improved processes for referrals between health care 

providers and CBOs for social connection programs in the communities they serve. 

 

Is the target population older adult CAREGIVERS, or older adults in general? Older 

adults and caregivers of older adults. The focus can be on caregivers of any age. 

 

 

The Circle of Friends model has been offered in-person and virtually. Could an 

applicant propose a 100% virtual model of Circle of Friends? Yes, that would be 
permitted. 

 

Are we able to contact agencies that provide an approved social connection 

program to obtain specific details of how the programs are operated? Yes, you are 

welcome to do so. 

 

Do you have general expectations on the number of people you are serving to the 

older adult population and community that you are serving?  There is not a specific 

https://www.usaging.org/
https://eldercare.acl.gov/home
https://acl.gov/programs/aging-and-disability-networks
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number we are looking for. However, given that this is likely a competitive application 

process, you will want to explore how to make your application distinguishable from other 

applicants.  

 

How did the approved social connection program bank come to be? The team 

sought feedback from an Advisory Committee, conducted a poll of the Aging Network, 

conducted a literature review and reviewed the Social Engagement Innovations Hub. 

Additional programs may be added in the future but is limited to this Program Bank for this 

specific opportunity.  

 

Can we use multiple approved social connection programs on our request? Yes, 

that is allowable as long as your budget does not exceed $35,000. 
 

Application Process 

 

Is a letter of intent required? No, we are not requesting letters of intent.  

 

Are we able to submit more than one application? Applicants should only submit one 

application for the Strengthening Social Connection in Communities funding opportunity. 

 

 

Letters of Support 

 

My agency is a AAA. Is a Letter of Support required? Only if you are applying for 
Track 2 in which case you would need to provide  letter from your health care partner. 

 

My agency is not part of the Aging Network. Do we need a letter of support from 

one of the Aging Network agencies? You would need a letter from your Area Agency on 

Aging, and you would need to explain your relationship to the Aging Network. 

 

If a program spans multiple states, should we obtain AAA support from each 

location? Yes. 

 

Would a tribe need a letter of support from the AAA given that they are sovereign 

nations? No, because Title VI Native American Aging Programs are on the list of eligible 

applcants, they would not need a letter from the AAA. 

 
Program Evaluation  

 

Are you able to provide insight into the evaluation protocols and measures 

required to ensure we can meet required measures/protocols? We are presently 

working with our evaluator (Scripps Gerontology Center at Miami University) to develop 

specific evaluation measures and protocols to support grantee evaluation efforts and will 

provide required measures to grantees after selection. Pilot sites will collect qualitative and 

quantitative output and outcome data for their chosen social connection program or 

https://www.usaging.org/
https://committoconnect.org/innovations-hub/
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process. Quantitative data could include output measures such as program participation 

and number of new community partnerships formed as a result of the activities, while 

outcome measures could include pre and post-tests with individually matched tests or 

changes in measurable outcomes related to social connection. We will also work with 

grantees to gather qualitative outcomes such as stories/testimonials from participants 

about the impact of social connection program on their lives. 

 

Grant Requirements 

Regarding the requirement to attend meetings and the annual meeting, does that 

apply to only the person designated to oversee the grant implementation? Correct, 

that would apply to the person overseeing the project, unless they designate someone else 

to attend in their place.  

How often are in one on one meetings? And I assume they will be via virtual?  The 

exact meeting cadence is being determined but expect approximately monthly. The 

meetings will all be virtual except for the meeting at the 2026 USAging Annual Conference 

and Trade Show in San Diego (July 18-21). 

 

Budget 

 

Can the grant cover staff time? Yes, certainly. 

 

Is there a required match? There is no required match. 

 
Is travel an eligible expense in the budget?  For example local travel or travel to receive 
training on an eligible program? Yes, related travel expenses are an eligible expense. Travel for 

one person to the annual meeting will be provided separately by USAging and does not need to be 

included in your budget. 

 

 

 

This project is supported by The John A. Hartford Foundation, RRF Foundation for Aging 

and the Health Foundation for Western & Central New York.  

https://www.usaging.org/

